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IN'I'ROIXJCTIOO 

Following is an historical sketch of the business developnent along "lower 
King Street," that stretch of King Street that extends five full blocks north 
fran Broad to Wentworth Street. While its character was principally residential 
in the eighteenth century, the street saw increased carmerical developnent 
throughout the nineteenth and into the twentieth centuries. In that ti.Ire, King 
Street emerged as a "Main Street" for peninsular Charleston, offering a wide 
array of retail goods and services. In that tirre, too, the street has continued 
to change in response to broader social and econanic considerations. With the 
growt of the city beyond the peninsula, the advent of the autaoobile, the emer­
gence of tourism, and an interest in historic preservation, the street has 
continued to change in recent decades, retaining sane of its basic, neighbor­
hcod orientation, while increasingly reflecting the importance of .visitors fran 
outside the city. 

Project Area Defined 

1 . 

King Street is often referred to in tP!'!flS of its "upper" and "lower" segments, 
with the distinction generally made at calhoun Street.· The area of King Street 
that extends below Broad Street is a.lnnst without excepticn residential: other­
wise, the street is characterized by ccmnercial uses even above the Crosstown 
Expressway. For this study, the area south of Olar lest.en Place, or Hasell Street, 
was suggested. Because Hasell Street does not extend through King, the project 
area was extended north to Wentworth Street to avoid an arbitrary starting point 
in the block of King that runs between Beaufain and Wentworth Streets. 

·"' 
Purp.?se 

'Ibe focus of this study is on the business uses of this p:>rtion of "lower King 
street" over time, tracing its emergence as a ccm:ne.rcial strip in the nineteenth 
century, and its twentieth century changes made in recognition of social and 
ecoru:xnic factors through changing patterns of business occupation. 



HISTORICAL DEVELOPMENT OF KING STREE:I' 

i 8th Century 

In the early developnent of Olarleston, it was King Street that provided 
the only straight route north fran the city to the upper peninsula and 
to rrore rerote, inland areas. Running north fran White Point Garden, the 
street roughly bisected the peninsula into eastern and western halves. Today, 
the street eictends alnost due north from South Battery, then bends slightly 

2. 

at Beaufain Street, running thence in a northwesterly direction on a straight 
course past present day Line Street before continuing on a sanewhat winding course 
well outside the historic city. This course has remained essentially unchanged 
since the eighteenth century when its lower portion was known as King Street and 
the upper reaches, outside the city limits, were known as the Eroad Path, or 
the High Way. 

The original plan of Charleston, the "Grand Model!" of 1.680 provided for a 
trapezoidal, fortified city extending west frcm the Cooper River at Fast Bay 
Street to Meeting Street, with its southern boundary just above present day 
Water Street and its northern boundary at Cumberland Street. Not until the 
second quarter of the eighteenth century did developtent extend significantly 
these limits. It was at this till'e that King Street began to develop as a 
prima.rily residential street running one block west of, and parallel to, Meeting 
Street. E1ward Crisp's map of the city in 1704 indicates the extent to which 
the early develoµnent of Cbarleston was focused on the Cooper River (see Illus­
tration). Crisp's map shcMs Meeting Street as largely undeveloped with the ex­
ception of two churches. Scattered to the west, outside the fortifications, are 
a handful of isolated structures that run parallel to the future route of 
King Street (of these, the nust notable is the Q.Jaker Meeting House -labelled 
11T11 on the map, the site of which is presently occupied by the Cbarleston County 
Parking Garage at the comer of King and Queen Streets). 

With a strong emphasis on waterfront developnent, it was natura;l..for King Street 
to emerge in the secorrl and third quarters of the eighteenth century as a resi­
dential, rather than a ccmnercial, street. 'lhe carmercial interests of the city 
remained through this period focused toward F.ast Ba.y Street and within the 
bounds of the old, fortified city. A map of Olarleston in 1739 (see Illustration) 
shows sane twentyfive buildings along King Street between Broad and Wentworth 
Streets. 'lhese are sited at nure generous intervals than the older buildings 
in the blocks to the east. Only the Q.taker Meeting House (labeled 11F11

) is afford-
ed special note; it occupies the same site as noted in 1704. A study of Cllarleston's 
mercantile ccmnunity in the period 1732 to 1767 indicates that, of the merchants 
who advertised their addresses in these years, remarkably few listed a King 
Street address. nus group never exceeded 3. 4 % of the total number of merchants 
whose addresses were advertised in period newspapers. '!he ten merchants known 
to have operated businesses along King Street included dealers in dry goods, 
"new York goods", tobacoo, run, and ''l:xx>ks and blanks." By contrast, craftsmen 
were found in greater mm1be.rs along King Street for the same period, ranging 
fran 2.8% to 26.2% of the total number of craftsmen who listed their addresses. 
The authors of the study explain this disparity as follows: 

'lhe developnent and increased. prosperity of Cllarleston 
resulted in a rise in the cost of renting and buying 
real estate within the carmercial core of the town. Sig­
nificant portions of the artisan ccmnunity dispersed 
throughout O'larleston as all but the rrore affluent crafts­
~ were forced fran the highly desirable locations {prin­
cipally East Bay, Broad, Clmrch, and Elliott Streets 1. 
Many small businessmen attenpted to cx:mbat rising real estate 
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prices by sharing buildings, while artisans made 
increasing use through time of the rrore peripheral 
King and Meeting Streets, t~ thoroughfares large-
ly ignored by merchants.* (See Appendix I for listing 
of merchants and craftsmen). 

s. 

Just as the pressures of real estate prices escalated later in the eighteenth 
century, the closely packed buildings that emerged along King Street by 1788 
would suggest that the street had, by then, taken on an increasingly amner-
cial nature while remaining, in large measure, a residential street. E. Petrie's 
map of Olarleston in 1788 (see Illustration) sh~ a dense clustering of buildings 
in the two blocks of King Street above Broad. Above that, between Clifford and 
Wenb.urth Streets, .the concentration of buildings was scmewhat less. Concurrent 
with the gro.vth of this portion of King street, its upper reaches, above present 
day calhoun Street, began to develop as a center of a wagon yard trade where 
ra'fl materials brought in fran the interior of the colony were traded ·for store 
goods.** 

A canparison of the maps of 1739 and 1788 denonstrates the significant physical 
growth that the city underwent within a fifty year period. By 1788, the surveyor 
no longer felt it irnp:>rtant to delineate the old, fortified "grand nmell11 city. 
Develotmmt by this time had spread south and west to the limits of the peninsula, 
and north as far as Calhoun Street, then known as Boundary Street or the city limit. 
With the western spread of the city in particular, King Street had begun to acquire 
a new significance as the central north-south thoroughfare, one developed, by 1788, 
rrore extensively than Meeting Street. '!he shift of the city's carmercial focus 
to the ~t and north of the old fortified city was further heightened in the 
years between 1788 and 1807. In that time, the Pinckney family donated a narrow 
marshy tract -of land to the city for the developnent of a market for beef, produce, 
anJ fish. The city built a long series of market stalls between Meeting Street 
and the Cooper River, along what is now }ax)wri as Market Street. At the same time, 
the unusually large block bounded by King, Meeting, Clifford, and Hasell Streets 
was bisected by the western extensioo of Market street. *** 'lhese develoµnents 
canbined to afford merchants new opp::>rtunities outside the traditional areas of 
carmercial activity earler in the century and offered services and goods in 
improved proximity to the shifting centers of population. 

19th Century 

By 1800, Olarleston was the fourth largest city in the United States, its popu­
lation twice that of Richm::md and canparable to that of New Orleans. Agricultural 
developrents in the cultivation of rice and cotton late in the eighteenth century 
spurred an econcxnic boom that accelerated through the first bK> decades of the 
nineteenth century until stayed by competition fran inland South Carolina towns 

* Jeanne A. cal.houn, Martha A. Zierden, Elizabeth A. Paysinger, "'!be Geographic 
Spread of 01arleston's Mercantile Ccrmtunity, 1732-1767," in South Carolina 
Historical Magazine, Vol. 86, No. 3, July 1985, pp.188-192. 

** Robert Stcx::ton, et al., Information for Guides of Historic Olarleston, City 
of Cllarleston Tourism Camdssion, 1985-;-p.2a2. ~ 

*** ~id., p.356. 
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E. Petrie, Plan of the City of Olarleston, South Carolina. 



and frcrn the Mississippi Valley states. In an attempt to recapture sane of 
its fonner praninence, the South carolina Rail Road was developed in the early 
1830s, extending 136 miles inland to Hamburg. While this effort was of limited 
s uccess, the city's econany recovered in tine and prospered through the ante­
bellum period, although never to the level of its earlier success. By 1860, 
Richirond's population had nearly equalled that of Cllarleston, and New Orleans' 
PJpulation was four t imes that of Charleston's .* 

King Street in the f irst half of the nineteenth century emerged as the city's 
principal concentration of merchants. While East Bay, Broad, and Market Streets 
continued as important business centers, specializations began to emerge: F.ast 
Bay Street and vicinity as the obvious center of shipping concerns and related 
bt<Sinesses, Broad Street as a banking and office concentration. While this trend 
was, at mid-century, not nearly so pronounced as it would be later, it is im­
portant as a factor i n King Street's develoµnent as a general, mercantile street. 

7 .• 

An 1851 map of Olarleston (see Illustration), shows how densely King Street had 
been developed at that time . The blocks fran Q..1een to calhoun Stz:eet are shown 
tightly packed with buildings, sane obviously residential (or residential/carmer­
cial) in fonn, but arranged with a closeness that su99ests highly desirable real 
estate put to ccmnerical uses. The block of King Street between Broad and Q.Ieen 
Streets is shown as less densely developed, but obviously with carmercial can­
ponents, particularly on the east side of the street and at the northwest corner 
of the block. 

Just as in the eighteenth century when merchants and craftsmen frequently 
resided above their businesses, the tradition of living above the store was 
carried out through the nineteenth century. 'lWo eighteenth century examples 
of. this pattern include the buildings at the comer of King and Broad Streets. 
'!he building that now houses Berlin's Clothing was built by John and Ann Bocquet 
Wcllller in the third quarter of that century as a residerlce with the first floor 
devoted in whole or part to their deerskin trade business. 'lhe Lining House, 
across the street, has the appearance of a private residence but for nost of 
its history included ccmnercial interests on the first floor. A newspaper was 
published here in the eighteenth century, and frcm at least the start of the 
nineteenth century until 1960, an apothecary was located here with a King Street 
address (the building, now a private residence, fronts on Broad Street). Other 
buildings koown to have been built in the nineteenth century that originally 
housed businesses on their first floors and residences above include: 147-149, 
erected 1878-1880; 150- 152-154, erected 1868; 159, erected 1866; 169, erected 
1866-1872; 171-173, erected 1865-1872; 191, erected c.1848; 200, erected c.1806; 
220, erected 1838-1839; 229- 231-233, erected c.1839; 235, erected 1838-1839; 
237, erected 1870; 241, erected c.1851; 243, erected c.1838; 245-247, erected 
c.1 838; 249, erected 1875-1876; 256, erected c.1839; ·and 268, erected c.1850. 

Sane buildings appear to have been erected in the nineteenth century with the 
intention of housing non-residential functions on their upper floors. An en­
graving of Henry B. Gleason & Co. 's Crockery Warehouse at 264 King Street dates 
to c.1830 and shows the second floor windows used for display of the same mer-

* Robert Stockton, et al., Information for Guides of Historic Olarleston, City 
of Charleston Tourism Comti.ssion, 1985, pp.36-37.~ 
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chandise as was offered for sale at the first floor (see Illustration). other 
second and upper floor spaces were used for different purposes. Colonel 
Blum's Range, 192-194-196-198 King Street, housed a hotel on its upper flcx:>rs, 
a use to which the building was restored in 1982-1983 as the King's Courtyard 
Inn. other exaqJles include the YMCA at 208 King Street, erected in 1889, and 
the Masonic Temple (1871-1872) and Carolina Rifles Amery (1889), at 270 and 
158-160 King Street, respectively. Like these last two buildings, a number of 
King Street structures housed social organizations on their upper flcx:>rs and 
rented their first floors to mercantile establishments. Still other buildings 
were converted fran strictly residential use to ccmnercial/residential uses in 
the nineteenth century, e.g., 186 King street, built early in the centw:Y and 
converted to camercial/residential use at least by 1849; 216 King Street, built 
c.1839-1840 and converted to mixed use in 1846; and -a late example- 165 King 
Street, built 1875, and converted to mixed use ten years ~at~-

sane buildings housed special uses that required cornnercial activity on the 
upper floors. Cook's Art & Photograph Galleries, established in 1849, was 
located in a third quarter nineteenth century building at 265 King Street in 
1889 (see Illustration). The building probably had sky lit.' ·. sitting studios 
for portraiture on the upper floor at that time. 

Buildings on King Street through the nineteenth century tended to be of bio-
or three- (and very infrequently one- or four-) stories in height and generally 
of brick constJ:uction. For the rrost part, they were tightly packed along 
the street, either sharing party walls with their neighbors, or free-standing 
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but in close proximity to buildings on adjacent lots. In sane cases, old 
Olarleston single-houses were renovated by enclosing or rebuilding their piazzas 
for carrnercial purposes. '!he block of King Street between Broad and Queen streets, 
r.ever as densely developed as the blocks to the north, was of sanewhat different 
character as a result. In 1885, the block included a rronument \IJOrks (see Illus­
tration) and the site of the Q.J.aker Meeting House, destroyed by fire in 1861. 

By the last.quarter of the nineteenth century, King Street included a vast 
array of retail establishments, social organizations, hotels, manufacturing 
establishments, and service related businesses . Clothing of all types was 
available here, as was focx:l fran grocers, fruit sellers, and confectioners 
and OOkers. There were numerous furniture stores, as well as upholsterers 
and carpet sellers. other merchants included specialists in umbrellas, cigars, 
music, hardware, dry goods, notions, paints, and jewelry. Services included 
barbers, undertakers, phannacists, plumbers, milliners, and a saloon. With 
only a few possible exceptions, nearly every building listed on King Street 
between Broad and Wentworth Streets was, by 1890, used at least in part as 
a business. 

20th Century 

In both new construction and building use, the first quarter of the twentieth 
century saw developrents that continued in the tradition of the late-nineteenth 
century. New buildings tended to be of two- or three-stories, generally with 
their upper floors devoted at least in part to reside.ntial use, although with 
a tendency to be rented as aparbnents rather than used as living· space for re­
tailers whose businesses ~ on the lower floors. One important exception to 
this pattern is seen in Kerrison' s Deaprbnent Store. Founded in 1830 and pur­
:EXJrted to be the oldest in the South, the business relocated to a large new 
building at the site of the present Riviera Theatre i n 1838. In this location, 
the management felt hampered for a number of years by its siting "too far 
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[north l fran the heart of the carmuni ty." By 1858, however, it had relocated 
to Hasell Street, and in 1920 expanded that facility with impressive, four-story 
frontage on King Street. 

'I'he new Kerrison's store of 1920 marked the introduction of a twentieth century 
ccmnercial architectural style and the beginnings of a corporate identified 
type of building that ~uld flourish in that vicinity. Beginning around 1918, 
a new type of store, known as the 5¢ & 1 0¢ department store began to appear on 
King Street. 'Ihese new establishments -were parts of regional or national cor­
p'.')rations and, as such, expressed in their architecture and graphics an· iden­
tity as part of a larger "chain11 of stores • . 'Ihe two earliest such chain five~ 
and-dimes appeared by 1918: F.W. Wool\<.Orth's at 257-259 King street, and 
S.H. Kress (later H.L. Green, Inc., and Silver's 5¢, 10¢ & $1) appear in city 
Cirectori~ of that year. Ten years later, W. T. Grant had established a similar 
concern at 265-267. . .King street. Both W.T. Grant and S.H. Kress have now disappear­
ed, the former relocated to the corner of King and Calhoun Streets and then closed, 
t.'1e later to 281 King street and still in operation. Both of these stores have 
now reverted to their earlier appearances, each as two sep:irate structures with 
b,JQ separate businesses. F.W. Wa:>l\<.Orths, though, rebuilt around 1938, denolish:ing 
the nineteenth century structures that the business had formerly occupied in 
favor of a nodem building with a corporate identity that relates to other Wcx>lworth 
stores of the period across the country. These stores, then, mark an important 
developnent of King .Street in the first half of this century, namely, the rise 
of businesses selling products or services that are national or regional in 
nature, rather than local. Other examples of this trend include the National 
Cash Resgister store, located in 1918-1928 at 200 King (and at 152 King in the 
following tv.u decades}; and the Great A&P Tea canpany, located at 241 King in 
1928, and at 233 King the following decade. 

As ccmpared to the late nineteenth century, a number of new sorts of business-
es appear in a survey of twentieth century city directories. In;>ortant am::>ng 
these are entert.airment facilities such as the OK Pressing Club, located at 
147 King Street in 1908, and Wonderland, at 253 King Street that saioo year, 
the bowling alley at 205-209 King {1950s), and the Riviera 'lbeatre (replacing 
the old Academy of Music) in 1939 at 225-227 King Street. Restaurants and cafes 
begin to appear in this period, arrong them: Playland cafe & Grill (233 King), 
the Astor cafe (216 King), l:x:>th 1948, am Dinty l-b:lre's Tavern, at 186 King 
Street in 1958. '!he Lady Balti.m:>re Tea Rocm was longer lived than nost such 
establishments, appearing first in 1928 at the YMCA Building (208 King), and last­
ing several decades at various addresses. A tattoo shop appeared at the same 
TI'.CA Building in 1958. Office supply stores begin appearing in 1908 and gain 
in number over the next decades, and then decline scmewhat in their numbers in 
the last twenty years. Gift shops appear first in 1928 and have remained a 
fairly stable presence since, paralleling Olarleston's emergence as a tourist 
destination. Personal loan and household finance organizations appear in 
1958, and are, for the rrost part, gone by 1978. A number of lawyers, accountants, 
dentists, and other professionals opened rusinesses along this portion of King 
Street after World War II and have remained rather constant in number. Print 
and frame shops appear for the first time in 1968 and have since escalated 
in number slightly. 

One new sort of business that emerged in this century has cane to characterize 
the two blocks bet-ween Qieen and Market streets. Antique shops are first 
identified as such in the 1928 city directory which listed four for that year. 
The growth in number of these businesses over the next decades is shown below: 

1918 1928 1938 1948 1958 1978 1987 

0 4 6 8 9 17 18 



Sate of these antique shops represent sane of the 100st venerable businesses on 
King Street, e.g., Schindler's, at 200 King Street, and Geo. c. Birlant & 
Canpany, at 191 King Street, berth in business at the same address since at 
least 1938, and the Jack Patla Conpany, in business at varioos lower King 
Street addresses since at least 1928. 'lhe present conc::entratioo of antique 
stores continues within the same two block area as the first stores were 
noted in 1928. 

The past few.decades have seen additional change in the business population 
of lower King Street. Several structures were erected in the block between 
Broad and Queen Streets in the 1970s, am:mg these are the Olarleston O:>unty 
Parking Garage, the King & Qleen [office] Building, and a professional office 
building north of Berlin's Clothing. en the west side of King between Princess 
arrl Fulton Streets, several buildings were dercolished in 1947 to make way for 
Cowpert.hwait's Furniture Store, since raoodelled several times as a bowling 
alley, military recruiting center, and professional offices. Nearby, the western 
blockfront between Princess and Market Streets was cleared for a suburban style 
bank building in the late 1960s. At the next corner, the Riviera 'Iheatre has 
been unused since the 1970s and is presently undergoing adaptation as an office 
and retail facility. '!he most significant change by far, however, was in the 
developnent of Cllarleston Place, a mamooth mixed use project occupying nearly 
the entire block bounded by King Street, .Market Street, Meeting Street, and 
Hasell Street. Conpleted t"'10 years ago, the project involved the deroolition 
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of a number of nineteenth century c:x:mnercial buildings (sane of whose facades 
were re-erected on Meeting Street) and the erection of a multi-story, irregularly 
massed building housing a hotel and conference center on the upper floors and 
retail stores and restaurants on the first floor as well as a large parking 
garage. In other developnents, a number_of amrercial buildings have been 
significantly renovated or restored in recent years, 1YDst notably Tellis 
Phannacy, Adams & Ortman, Willis & Geiger, Knickers, Rodier, and the King's 
Courtyard Inn. 



APPENDIX I 

Cliarleston .Merchants & Craf tsnen, 1732-1767: King Street* 

Smith & Tew merchants 1738-43 moved 1743 to Elliott St. 
Othniel Beale dry goods II 

Jacd:> Martin rum II 

Daniel Townsend misc. goods II 

Robert Segston tobacco 1744-49 house of Mrs. Wickham 
El izabeth Tinothy bcxlks, blanks 

,, 
5ampson Neyle dry goods 1756-61 
John Wagiler dry goods 1762-67 Broad & King Sts. 
Felix long dry goods tt 

George Snith New York gocx:ls II King & Queen Sts. 

Philip Massey gunsmith 1732-37 
Ann Wilson fan mender 1738-43 moved 17 40 to Olurch St. 
James Hilliard clock & watch-

maker " sign of the clock 
David Fox leather curer It 

Josiah Claypoole j oiner, cabinet-
maker II 

Rene Gegye clock & watch-
maker II moved 1 7 4 2 fran Cllllrch St. 

Richard Webb wheelwright II 

Samuel Perkins coach & harness 
maker II corner Tradd & King Sts. 

Richard caulton upholsterer II 

William Valance tailor II 

Matthew Shrub coach & harness 
maker " 

Mr. Delgras shoemaker II 

Samuel Stevens tinplate worker II 

David Morgin watchmaker II 

'Ihanas Bush stayrnaker 1744-49 moved 1748 fran Elliott St. 
William Bisset tailor tt 

Robert Segston tobacconist II 

Davi d z.bngin clock & watch 
maker u 

Patrick Maclein bricklayer II 

Batts & Delaine leather dresser & 
breeches maker II sign of the sloop 

John Fryer carpenter 1750-55 
James Cortonne jeweller " moved 1755 to Broad St. 
Abraham Daphne carpenter II 

'11lanas Harvie t.nnbrella mender n 

Michael Scheurer painter & glazer 1756-61 
William Miller carpenter, joiner " rooved 1760 to Tradd St. 
Fred. Holzendorff sadler fl 

Saunders & Scrivener seamstresses & 
milliners II 

Abraham Haney butcher II 

Jdm Robertson brass founder II 

Cllarles l1::>tt hatter II 

Frederick Hoff keyboard tuner " 
Jacob Warley sadler " at the saddle 

(continued) 



John Nonnan 
John Mason 
James Mylne 
William Waldren 
'lbanas Harvey 
Martin Ienard 
'lbanas Barton 
Joshua Etlen 

gunsmith 
upholsterer 
baker 
staymaker 
rutcher 
ropemaker 
sadler 
turner 

1762-67 
II 

II 

II 

II 

II 

II 

II 

APPmDlX I 

King & Queen Sts. 
at St. George & the Dragon 

* fran Jeanne A. Calhoun, Martha A. Zierden, Elizabeth A. Paysinger, "'!he 
Geographic Spread of Charleston's Mercantile Camrunity, 1732-1767," in 
South carolina Historical Magazine, Vol. 86, No. 3, July 1985, pp.182-220. 

'lbe authors examined newspapers of the pericxi 1732-1767, noting all mer­
chants and craftsmen who specified an address in their advertisements. 
Sampling was segmented into six year pericxis. Because the addresses are 
seldan specific, sane of the listings may refer t o King Street businesses 
located below Broad Street. 



APPENDIX II 

SURVEY OF BUSINESSES rn HIS'IDRIC BUILDTIG:> CN KING STREm' 

Eighty historic building addresses were identified on the stretch of King 
Street that extends between Broad and Wentworth Streets. Using city directories 
and secondary source materials (principally newspaper clippings files), a sur­
vey was made to identify the changing patterns of business tenancy over the pa.st 
one hundred years. 

City directories were examined at ten year intervals* and the business tenants 
for each property noted. Newspaper files and published historical notes were 
examined to augment this information and to provide earlier data wherever avail­
able. 

Existing, historic buildings were the basis of consideration. Buildings less 
than forty years old and sites of darolished buildings were not considered. 

In sane cases, directories are unclear as to whether a given narre represents a 
business owner or residential tenant. t-Dst of the buildings, particularly 
those fra:n the nineteenth century, once had residential tenants on their upper 
flcors; sane buildings continue in this pattern today, although this infonnation 
was not noted here. 

Only the past one hnndred years of business tenancy was examined in detail 
due, in part, to time restraints, and to the increasing difficulty of researching 
older occupancies due to address changes and inconsistencies, and a tendency 
in earlier directories to list businesses only by their proprietors • names and 
not by the nature of their businesses. 

* Directories for the years 1890, 1898, 1908, 1918, 1928, 1938, 1948, 1958, 1968, 
1978, and 1987 were examined. 'Ihe directory for 1888 does not have a ltsting 
of buildings arranged by address (as do the others), and the 1988directory was 
unavailable. 



APPENDIX II 

[11 1-113] Known as 106 Broad Street: 'lhe Lining House 

11 4-116 

123 

../. 

125 

Built perhaps as early as 1715, this house functioned in part as 
as .business through rrost of its history. It was bought and re­
stored by '!he Preservation SOciety of Cl'larleston in 1961 and sold 
as a private residence. 

1786-1802 

1890-1948 
1958 

Ann Tioothy first ~ editor and newspaper pub­
lisher in l\merica published The Gazette here. 
Within roughly this same period, the house served 
additionally as an apothecary - ~ use that ~uld 
continue at this address until 1960. 
C.F. Schwettman & Son, Phannacy 
Poulnot's Pha.rne.cy 

l<IxJwll also as 104 Broad Street 
John and Ann Bocquet Wagner built this house in the third quarter 
of the eighteenth century and used the first floor for their 
business as mercahnts in the deerskin trade. 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918-87 

1890 
1898-1908 
1918-1948 
1958-1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918-1928 
1938-1948 
1958-1987 

J.H. Wigger, grocer; Levy Abraham, clothing 
Gerasino Pajones, fruits; Henry Berlinsky, clothing 
Henry Berlinsky, clothing 
Berlin Bros., clothing 

Cllarles Hockey, undertaker 
c. Russo, fruits 
listed variously as vacant or a residence 
Marguerite's Beauty Salon 

Guillemin & Riley, stoves & tinware 
vacant 
carolina Furniture Co. 
listed only as a residence 
Schwettman's Drugs 
Tellis Pharmacy [since 1949] 

147 Built en suite with 149 King street ~tween 1878 and 1880 as 
the grocery of Ernst Hesse. 

147 149 
1890 lr.R. Meyer, grocer; A-:r:;-; Rhodes, furniture 
1898 L.W. Lutjen, grocer; A.M. A.mot, tinware, etc. 
1908 J.F. Pieper; James smith, OK Pressing Club 
1918 H. Martschink, grocer; vacant 
1 928 American Market; Ye Marion Bcoke Shoppe 
1938 vacant; Louis N. Burgess Antiques 
1948 Libby's Gift Shop; I.Duis N. Burgess Antiques 
1958 vacant; The Craftsman 1s Shop, furniture repairs 
1968 01arleston Florist, Inc.; the Craftsman's Shop 
1978 ti j II 

1987 Preservation Society of C"larleston; Ben Silver Corp. 

149 See 147, above. 

150 Nos. 150, 152, and 154 were built in 1868 as stores with upper 
story residences. 

1890- 1898 E.!;l. Hesse, boots & shoes 



150 1908 
1918 
1928 
1938 
1948-1958 
1968 
1978 
1987 

w.s. Cook 
I.G. Dixon 
Nathan Yaschak 
Q.leen 1s Liquor Store 
George A. Telegas, Liquor 
vacant 
? 
82 Queen Cafe & Deli 

APPENDIX II 

152 See note for 150 King Street. 

151 

153 

1890-1898 vacant 
1908 J.A. Kerinedy 
1918 C.H. 'lbmpson 
1928 vacant 
1938-1948 National Cash Register 
1958 William J. Nevils 
1968 Smith Corona Corp. 
1978 .Harleston House Reproduction Furniture; King's Path Antiques 
1987 Candy Lion of Olarleston, clothing 

1890-1898 
1908-1918 
1928-1938 
1948 
1958 
1968 
1978 
1987 

1898-19{}8 
1918 
1928 
1938 
1948 
1958 
1968-1978 
1987 

Philip Meitzler, fruits 
Hiram ~re 
Howard French Dry Cleaning 
Palmetto Candy Kitchen 
Miss Georgette Pardue 
A&A Coin land, numismatists 
? 
McKnight Frampton & Co. , accountants 

no listing 
Clarence I.Javy 
Sisson's Modern Bakery 
William M. Lloyd 
Railroad salvage F\lrniture House 
Coastal Optical Co.; Kafer Paint & Wallpaper Co. 
Kafer Paint & Wallpaper Co. 
Circa Gift Shop 

154 See note for 150 King Street. 

1 55 

1890 J. Kosinsky, clthing 
1898 J.H. Heinsohn, grocer 
1908 J.O. Gurdineer 
1918 W.T. Arnholter 
1928-1958 Mappus Bros. Plumbing 
1968 vacant 
1978 Felder's Barber Shop 
1987 Estate Antiques 

1890 
1898 
1918-1928 
1938-1958 
1968-1978 
1987 

J.M. Marjenhoff, upholsterer 
Brennen Bros. , undertakers 
Marion Cohen, clothing 
Harry E. Cohen, general merchandise 
McKnight & Fran¢:on, accountants 
Humphries & Co., CPA 's; law offices 



158-160 

159 

1151 

162 

163 

APPENDIX II 

The carolina Rifles Anoory, built in 1889, with stores to 
let on the first story. 'Ihe second story was used as an 
anoory until sanetime after 1908 when converted to apartments. 

158 160 
1890 Vc!l:C:al'lt store; vacant store 
1898 A.G. Rhodes, furniture 
1908 Auto Repair & SUpply ()).; J .A. Storfer & Bro. 
1 91 8 vacant; vacant 
1928 Colonial Antique Exchange; H.A. Schroeder, plumber 
1938 vacant; 11 

1948 Craftsman Shop, furniture repairs; 11 

1 9 58 vacant; 11 

1968 Carolina Prints & Frames; Camrunity Builders, contractors 
1978 Gaslight Cafe; vacant 
1987 Joe's Pilot House Restaurant; Bridal House of Charleston 

Built 1866 by George Flach, jeweller at this address. 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918 
1928 
1938 
1948 
1958-1968 
1978 
1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918-1928 
1938 
1948 
1958 
1968-1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918-1928 
1938 
1948 
1958 
1968-1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918 
1928 
1938 
1948 
1958 
1968-1978 
1987 

Joe Sam laundry 
Yee lee Laundry 
John Toby 
vacant 
American Shoe Repairers 
U:>belle Gift Shop 
Marion Dress Shop . 
Hildebrand 1s Antiques & Silverplating 
Jolmson Coker & Co. , Antiques 
Ginkgo Leaf Fine Pottery 

Etlward Nord, jeweller 
M.S. Fulton, fruits 
vacant 
G.F. Muslaidin, plumber 
Casimir T. Patrick 
Fred Kuhar; F.dw. L. Prause; Parnassus At Hane, books 
James A. Peeples 
Henrietta Peoples' Beauty salon 

.. 
A. Blum, clothing 
N. Lazarus, shoes, etc. 
vacant 
Jacob Wolper, clothing 

II ,·dry goods 
Elaine M:x:>re Photography Studio 
International Union of Bricklayers, Plasterers, Tile Setters 
01.arleston Library Soc:iety Annex 

W.T. Prescott, tinsmith 
A. Lederberger, paints 
vacant 
? 
J.M. Bocowski. Antiques 
Lady Balti.Irore tea Roan & waten's Exchange 
U:>belle Gift ~ 
Old Slave Market candy; Paul Buckholdt, optarotrist 
Paul Buckholdt, optaretrist 
Livingston Antiques 



164 

165 

169 

171-173 

174 

175 

177 

178 

APPENDIX II 

Olarleston Library Society. 
Founded in 1748, the present building was erected in 1914. 
Previous uses on the site include A.J. Castion, a black 
caterer, 1890 and 1898. 

Built in 1875 as a residence by William Byrne, grocer and 
liquor dealer, the building was converted to cx:mnercial use 
in 1885. It operated as a bakery fran 1885 to World War II. 

1.890-1908 
1918-1938 
1948 
1958 
1968 
1978-1987 

F. Steincke, baker 
Meyer Collis, baker 
Johnson's Pharmacy 
Means' Fine Art 
? 
Elizabeth Austin Antiques 

BUilt between 1866 and 1872, the building was sold to J. Rugheimer, 
a draper and tailor, in 1875. 

1890-1928 
1938-1978 
1987 

Rugheimer's Merchant Tailors 
R.M. McGillivray, office equipnent 
Imex InternatiotDal, Real Estate; Oriental Rug Co. 

BUilt between 1865 and 1872 by Hannah Enston. 

1890 
1698 
1908 
1918 
1928-1948 
1958 
1968-1978 
1987 

1890-1898 
1908 
1918 
1928 
1938 
1948 
1958-1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918 
1928 
1948-1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918 
1928-1938 
1948-1958 
1968-1987 

1890 
1898 

171 173 
? ; David Goldstein, jeweller 
W.A. Denaux, u{Xlolsterer; Joseph Rosas, jeweller 
J. Marjenhoff; S\rw'eatman & ROdgers · 
David Mazo, grcx::er; southern Meat Market 
Geo. Mazo, grocer; Southern Meat & Fish Market 
Utsey' s Inerior Decoration; 11 

11 
; no listing 

John Gibson Antiques 

I.angley Bros., underwear manufacturers 
Olarleston Pants Manufacturing Co. 
Gas Engine & Electric Co.; O.R.I. Vicadanini, awnings 
vacant 
Catrnercial Credit C.o. 
? 
s.c. Electric & Gas Co. 

Mrs. carey, pluroer 
J.H.D. Wiggers, furniture 
Brennen Bros. , undertakers 
Joseph Sharnof f 
01arleston Shoe Hospital 
Charlie's I:elicatessen 

vacant store 
Jarres Ackerman, paints 
A. Duffy & son 
H.D. Gibbes (branch) 
vacant 
Renneker's Paint Co. 
Jack Patla Co. Antiques 

Mrs . Sarah Riley, notions 
J. Marjenhoff, urhols terer 



178 

179 

180 

181 

183 

185 

1908 
1918 
1928-1968 
1978 
1987 

1890-1918 
1928 
1938 
1958-1978 
1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918 
1928-1948 
1958-1968 
1978 
1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918 
1928 
1938 
1948 
1958-1987 

1890-1898 
1908 
1918 
1928-1938 
1948 
1958-1968 
1978 
1987 

1890 
1898-1918 
1928 
1938 
1948 
1958-1968 
1978 
1987 

APPllIDDC II 

G.F. Musladin 
Dime Messenger Service 
W.K. Prause, plumbing & heating 
vacant 
Cllristian Michl, clothing 

E. Ladeveze, coofectioner 
Myers & Dicks, confectioners 
E. Ladeveze, ccnfectioner 
Fralix & Son, shoe repairs 
Elegant Rags, clothing 

Mrs. J. lewis,, clothing 
Adam Weber, barber 
Harley & Salvo 
Sanruel Fleming 
J.H. Green, tailor 
W.K. Prause, plumbing contractor 
vacant 
Brittain's of Cllarleston, gifts 

Mrs. Barbara Balster, notions; Herman Balster, tailor 
II I dry goods 

Southern News ~pot 
Sanruel Rosen 
Mrs. Sinmie Patla 
J. Henry Rennec.ker, paints 
Clark's Furniture Store 
Jack Patla Co. Antiques 

vacant store 
Joseph ShaJ:nof f 
Morris Goldman 
Heisser Printing Co. 
Margiotta's Sewing Machine Shop; 
The Art Store, art supplies; 
Antiques 
John Gibson Co. Antiques 

A.C . F. Gotjen, grocer 
H.G.C. Hackemann, grocer 
Patla Antique Furniture Co. 
Walter A. Renken 
'!he Oriental Stare, linens 
Harley's Office Machines 
Bees & Bees of Cllarleston 
vacant 

Leonard Gaines, architect 
II 

186 Built for Andrew fuffet, this building was leased to Jasper 
Crristiansen as a grocery in 1849. In 1870, it was sold to D.W. 
Gotjen, a grocer. 

1890 D.W. Gotjen, grocer 
1898-1918 O.H. Wieters, grocer 
1928 N.J. Mathisen, grocer 
1938 Walter S. Noisette, upholsterer 
1948 vacant 
1958 Dinty f.bore's tavern 
1968 vacant 
1978-1987 RTW, clothing 



188 

190 

191 

192-194 

196-198 

193 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918 
1928 
1938-1968 
1978-1987 

1890-1898 
1908 
1918 
1928 
1938-1958 
1968-1987 

Morris Hornik, clothing 
vacant 
Dr. M.H. Collins 
'ilianas Tire Co. 
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Industrial loan & Investment Corp. 
Installment Finance Corp. 
carolina Prints & Frames 

listed as residence 
vacant store 
Sperry & Hutdti.nson Co.; capt. C.D. Thanas; Salvation 'Amrj 
listed as residence 
r:onnell's Bicycle Store 
Horne Appliance & Service Center 

Built c.1848 by William Ellston, a second generation cabinetmaker 
with a specialty of "chair ornamental painting & gilding. 11 Enston 
operated his shop and furniture canpany here until his death in 
1860. 

1890-1918 
1928 
1938-1987 

Phoenix Furniture Gb. 
U-No Furniture Co. 
George C. Birlant & Co., Antiques 

Nos. 192, 194, 196, and 198 are known as Col. Blum's Range. '!be 
buildings were designed en suite c.1853 by Francis D. Lee, architect. 
the u~ stories were originally devoted to hotel use -a pattern 
to which the building was restored in 1982-1983. 

1890-1898 Singer Manufacturing Co.; Pythian Hall 
1898 " ; 0.5. Miscally, plt.mibing 
1908 B. W. r:onnell & Sons 
1918 vacant 
1 928 American Faucational Society 
1938 vacant 
1948 Buckler Studio Photography; Jet White Laundry 
1958 John Bischoff, office; Buckler Studio Photog.; Electrolux vact.iurr 
1968 vacant; Hoffman House, numismatists 
1978 Oriental Rug & Antique Shop; Hoffman House, numismatists 
1987 Amelia LJ:)uise Antiques 

See note for 192-194, above. 

1890-1908 A.S. Thanas, furniture; Forrest House, hotel 
1918 B.W. r:bnnell & Son; residences 
1928 M.M. Glasser Electric & Auto Supplies; B.W. r:onnell & Son, bikes 
1938 vacant 
1948 Sports Arena Skating Rink; The Shade Shop; Maytag Hane Appliance. 
1958 Guylas Antiques of London; Maytag Hane Appliances 
1968 Red·'lbrii Antiques; Gamier 1s Book Shop 
1978 Antique Trading Post; Jerry L. Boyer Antiques 
1 987 King's Courtyard Inn 

1890-1908 
1918 
1928-1938 
1948 
1958-1987 

J. H. Mensing, merchant tailor 
Clarke Electric Co. 
Maani.llan Electric Co. 
Palmetto Grill; Terrill's Real Estate 
Colonial Antiques Shop 



195 

197 

1890 
1898 
1908-1918 
1928 
1938 
1948 
1958-1968 
1978 
1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918 
1928-1948 
1958 
1968 
1978-1987 

APPENDIX II 
-... 

Miss M.L. Buckley, milliner 
? 
John McMillan 
vacant 
Mrs. Gertrude M. Forbes, optanetrist; Mrs. C.B. Heape, dressmak 
Harry Sinx:>n, optician 
'Thanas A. Killian, optanetrist 
J. D:mald Koets, optician 
vacant 

J.J. Benni.age, saloon 
J.F. Brainovich, grocer 
Salvation Army 
A.O. Rihner; Mrs. Rose St. George 
Palace Market Meats 
vacant 
Friden's Inc. Office Machines 
Red Torii Antiques 

200 Built c.1806, probably by painter-glazer, and Revolutionary War 
hero George Flagg. Sold in 1810 to Dr. Michael Franty, who used 
the. building as a house and office. 

201 
.... 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918-1928 
1938-1987 

1890-1898 
1908 
1918 
1928-1968 
1978 
1987 

vacant store 
W.J. Black, billiards, etc. 
I.G. Dixon 
National cash Register 
Schindler's Cbin & Stamp Exchange [later Antiques] 

Ernest Pauls, shoemaker 
Henry Pauls 
J.P. Denos 
Cllristos Castaries, grocer 
R&S Grocery 
Petersen's Antiques 

202 Built in 1912 for John Rugheimer, merchant atilor whose business 
was founded in 1864. 

204 

206 

[1912]-1968 John Rugheimer Sons, ,atilors 
1978-1987 Fine Arts Ltd, gallery~ 

Built together with 206 King Street as a one-story building in 
1887, the second story was a~ in 1894. 

1890 E.H. D:Jgers, barber 
1898-1918 Nicholas G. D.lffy, printing, etc. 
1928 National Printing Cb. 
1938 Benj • Hirsch Antiques 
1948 M. Werner I.esemann, liquors 
1958-1968 vacant 
1978 Schwartz's Photography, annex 
1987 A 1Riga Antiques 

See note for 204, above. 

1890 
1898-1908 
1918 
1928 
1938 

J.E. Rogers, painter 
G.W. Blake, plumber 
Salvation Army Hall 
Oil-0-Matic Heating Co. 
Andrew Trapalis 



206 

205-209 

208 

212 

214 

216 

218 

1948 
1958-1978 
1987 

APP.ENDIX II 

.EmrEtt Johnson Decorative Art 
wuis Schwartz Photography 
Golden & Associates Antiques 

'!he present building on this site was erected in 1947 as Cowper­
thwait's F\J..rniture Store. It has since served as a l:x:>wling alley , 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers offices, and was last renovated in 
1968 as executive offices. Parlier buildings on this site had 
housed watclunakers, clothiers, bakers, and opticians (1890-1938). 

Known also as 208 & 210 King Street, this building was erected in 
1889 as a YMCA. 

1890 
1898 

1908 
1918 
1928 

1938 
1948 
1958 
1968 
1978 
1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918 
1928 
1938 
1948 
1958 
1968 
1978 
1987 

1890-1908 
1918-1928 
1938-1948 
1958-1968 
1978 
1987 

YMCA Building 
II J.S. k>pez, barber, chiropodist; Harvey & 

Mackenfuss, bicycles 
11 

; Clothworthy School of Stenography 
Wcrnen's Exchange; Heinz Baking Co.; Charles Pascuccello 
'!he Studio Gift Shop; Lady Balti.rrore Tea Roan; Charles­

ton Window Cleaning Service; Tip Top Barber Shop 
'!he Floral Gift Shop; Tip Top Barber Shop 
Gatlin Opticians; Benj. Hirsch Antiques; Colonial Restaurant 

11 
; US cbast Guard Recruiting; Grimshaw Tattoo 

II j Gordon IS Art Shop r framing 
Fine Arts Ltd., framers; Petersen's Antiques 
Fine Decorative Accessories; Heart's Desire, clothing 

Mrs. M. Marlow, fruits 
r.t:>rris ~vy, clothing 
J. Opland 
resdience 
Southern Furniture Co. 
Aaron Fechter Antiques 
Army & Navy SUrplus Store 
A. Fechter Antiques 
Langley Hall Antiques 
Joseph A. Scaltro Antiques 
Bits of Lace, clothing; '!he Q.lilt Shop 

Henry Brown, clothing 
Southern F\u:niture Co. 
Aaron Fechter Antiques 
'!he Fabric Center 
(,).leen's Alley Antiques 
Baker's Cafe 

Built c.1839-1840 as a house, the building was bought by Michael Lynas 
as a dry goods store in 1846. Vincent Olicco renn:ielled the building 
in 1908. 

1890 
1898-1908 
1918 
1928-1938 
1948 
1958-1987 

1890-1908 
1918-1928 
1938 

Mrs. L. Haas, fancy goods; Mrs. H.B. Beattie, dress maker 
store vacant 
Olarleston a.it Rate Tire Co. 
Miller Furniture Co. 
Astor caf e 
vacant 

Henry Mabus, jeweller 
Mark Li chtenstein, clothing 
Lichey's Men's Shop 



218 1948-1958 
l968 
1978 
1987 

Firetag's Men's Clothing 
Scharnoff 's Uniform Shop 
Hillman's Yam Shop 
vacant 
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220 Erected 1838-1839, probably for Nathan Hart, hardware dealer. 

225-227 

229 

-•· 
231 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918 
1928 
1938 
1948-1968 
1978 
1987 

Hart & Co. , hardware 
John Hurkamp Co., grocers 
John H. Gotjen Co. 
? 
New York loan Off ice 

11 
; Mendel Dumas, clothing. 

M. Dumas & sons, Men 1s Clothing 
Blue Knight Gallery, art works 
vacant 

The Riviera Theatre building was erected in 1939 on the site of 
the former Academy of Music and Kerrison's ~partnElt Store. 

[1939)-1968 Riviera 'lheatre; Williamson Jewellers 
1978-1987 vacant; vacant 

Nos. 229, 231, and 233 were built en suite for Rachel Lazarus, 
c.1839. 

1890-1898 
1918-1938 
1948 
j958 
1968-1987 

vacant store 
Jet White La\Dldry 
Cllarm Shop, vanen's clothing 
Wilder J. Gramner; Paul E. Sanders 
Old 'Ibwne Restaurant 

See note for 229, above. 

1890-1898 
1908-1918 
1928-1948 
1958 
1968 
1978 
1987 

A.W. F.ckel, drugs 
Kerrison DrUg Co. 
Duffy's Pharmacy 
Walter's Restaurant 
'!he Tiki Cocktail lounge 
Blue Grass Saloon, cocktails 
Belle France, clothing 

233 See note for 229, above. 

1890 
1898-1908 
1918 
1928 
1938 
1948 
1958-1978 
1987 

T.S. Nipson, boots & shoes 
M. O'Shaughnessy, ice cream 
Olarles Brown; Miss J.M. Jervey 
Adam Weber 
A&P Fc:x:rl Store 
Playland cafe & Grill 
vacant 
Rodier, clothing 

235 Built for the firm of Vogel & Salvo, cabinetmakers, 1838-1839. 

1890-1918 J.F. Norris Furniture 
1928 'Ihe Oriental Store 
1928-1948 Cowperthwait Furniture C.O. 
1958 James M. Lea & Son, furniture 
1968- 1978 Reliable Interior DeCorating 
1987 listed only as aparbnents 



227 

239 

239~ 

241 

), 

243 

245-247 

APPllIDDC II 

Designed by architects Abrahams & Seyle in 1870 for C.D. Ahrens 
& Co. , grocers, the building's upper floors were intended 
for residential use but converted to use as a social club, and 
later music and dance studios before becaning offices. 

1890-1908 F. Von Owen, grocer; Queen City Club 
1918 Art Embroidery Store 
1928-1958 W.P. Cart Co., jewellers; Cappelrnan School of Piano; 

Posner School of ranee (both listed 1938 only) 
1 968-1978 Kassis Bros. Orthopedic Shoes 
1987 Willis & Geiger, clothing; Southeastern Wildlife 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918-
1928-1948 
1958-1978 
1987 

1890 
1898-1908 
1918-[1976] 
1978 
1987 

Exposition offices (non-profit corp.) 

Cafiero, Mollo & Co., fruits; Joseph Bock, jeweller 
Louis ~llo, fruits 
R. Achurch, engraver; 'llte Stag Hotel 
Royal Restaurant; Hotel Royal 
Carolina Savings Bank 
First National Bank of Sout;h Carolina 
First Citizen's Bank 

Joseph Bock, jeweller 
? 
Boston Shoe Shine Parlor 
We Design Interiors 
G:>lden Goodies, Too, jewelry 

Built c.1851 by William laurel as a business with residential upper 
floors. 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918 
1928 
1938 
1948 
1958-1 968 
1978 
1987 

J.P. Strohecker Men's Furnishings 
Joseph Bock, jeweler 
W.J.D. Heinz 
'llte Triangle 
Great MP Tea Cb. 
vacant 
Davidson's Fashion House, ~1 s clothing 
Beneficial Fi nance Co. 
Brandt Agency Real Estate; Oiarles To-.m Gallery 
Julian V. Brandt Real F..state 

John Siegling built this structure for his residence and the 
Siegling Music House c. 1 838. The Siegling Music House con­
tinued in operation here until 1973. 

[1838-1973] Siegling Music House 
1978 Ebok Basement, Ltd.; Annette Sandburg Antiques 
1987 03.ughters of St. Paul Catholic Book Store 

'Ihese two buildings were erceted c.1838 by Nathan Hart or his heirs. 
Originally three-stories each, they were rerrodelled as two-story 
buildings near the turn of the century. 

1890 
1898-1908 
1918-1928 
1938-1958 
1968-1978 
1987 

245 247 
vacant; Mutual Carpet Co. 
Etlward Hahn, ice ere.am; Mutual Carpet Co. 
S.H. Kress & Co. (both buildings) 
H. L. Green, Inc. , variety store 
Silvers' S~ , 10¢, $1 store 
Knickers, clothing 
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Erected 1875-1876 for Susan Wood, this building originally 
housed J.R. Read & C.o., dry gcx:ds merchants and, many years 
later, was linked to 245-247 as Silvers' store. 

1890-1908 
1918-1978 
1987 

1890-1928 

1938-1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918 
1928-1958 
1968 
1978 
1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918-1948 
1958 
1968-1978 
1987 

J.R. Read & C.o., dry goods; F.A. Newell, photographer 
Silvers' 5¢, 10¢, $1 store 
vacant 

Carrington.;.Thanas & C.o., jewelers; (with photography 
studios and doctors and dentists as secondary tenants) 

Adams & Orbnan, jewelers 

Falk Clothing Co. 
J.R. Johnson & Son, hats 
Wonderland 
Citizen's Bank 
South Carolina National Bank 
vacant 
Mary Heffron Beauty Salon 
Demetre Jewelers 

Lazarus & Smith Hardware 
C.D. Schinner & Co., grocers; Aldine Social Club 
Farley & Galin 
M .H. Lazarus Co., hardware 
vacant 
Household Finance Cbrp. 
Charleston Florist, Inc. 

Erected c.1839 for William H. Jones, jeweler. 

1890 Mrs. M.L. Ashton, hair goods 
1898 Jim Kee Laundry 
1908-1938 Martin's Shoe Store 
1948-1978 Iaisy Bogin, wanen's clothing 
1987 Orient Express 

1890-1908 
1918 
1928 
1938-1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918 
1928-1978 
1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918-1987 

Stephen 'Ihanas & Bro., j ewelers 
Metz Jewelers 
Snart Set Hoisery Shop 
F.W. WoolYJOrth Co. (see 259 King Street listing) 

Charles Berbusse, rattan goods 
vacant 
Miss M.A. cade 
'!he French Hat Shop 
Snelgrave 1s French Hat Shop, milliners 
Fincke Antiques 

Cohen & Triest, dry gcx:xls 
W.P. Walsh, dry gCXJds 
F.M. Kirby & Co. 
F.W. Woolworth Co. (see also 257 King Street} 

Kerrison' s Deparbnent Store, founded 1830, is said to be the oldest 
in the south. In 1920, the existing store that fronted on Hayne 
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Street was enlarged with a new frontage on King Street. 
The store, which began operation at the site of the Riviera 
'Iheatre, continues in o~ration today at 260-262 King Street. 

1890 
1898 
1908-1968 
1978 
1987 ~~ 

1890 
1898 
1908 
1918 
1928 
1938 
1948 
1958-1987 

1890 
1898 
1908 
, 918 
1928-1948 
1958 
1968-1987 

1890 
1898:1908 
1918 
1928-1948 
1958-1987 

van Santen 1s Confectioners 
vacant 
Iegerton & Co, Inc. , office supplies, bJoks 
vacant 
Kassis Brothers Orthopedic Shoes 

vacant store 
Parlor Market 
MacLeod & Co. , Inc. 
W .P. Cart Co., jewelers 
Gross Millinery Co. 
Suzanne Hat ~ 
Allen's Shoes 
Diana Shops, wcoen's clothing 

J .R. Johnson & Sons, umbrellas 
vacant 
El:lisonia 
W.J. Skinner Clothing Co. 
W.T. Grant Co. 
Allen's Shoe Store 
Scottie Stores Drugs 

John McElree, jewelry; 'Ihe Daily SUn 
M.H. I.azarus Co., hardware 
'!he Fashion; Pcnciana Cigar Co. 
W.T. Grant Co. (see 265 King Street, above) 
Warner's WCXDell's Clothes 

John 'Ihcmpson established a seed store on King Street in 1839 that 
later became the Mcintosh Seed Co. and was noved to this site 
c.1850. The present stone facade was erected in 1894. 

[c.1850)-1968 Wm. Mcintosh Seeds 
1978 vacant 
1987 '!he stockpot, kitchen goods 

1890 
1898 
1908-1918 
1928 
1938-1958 
1968 
1978-1987 

E. Spanier Dry G::xJds 
J. Pinkussohn, agent, OP Store; J.L. David & Co. , clothing 
03.vid o.itf itting Co. 
vacant 
Elfrid's Departnent Store 
Belk-Robinson Depa.rbrent Store 
John Huguley Co., office supplies, bcoks 

Erectea 1 871-1 872 as a Masonic Temple (upper floors) , with retail 
space on the grouiid story. 

1890 
1898 

1908 
1918 

J.S. Pinkussohn & Bro., cigars; vacant; Elias Lewis, boots, shoe~ 
" ; Washington Light Infantry; Boy's 

Clothing Co. 
Olarleston Trunk Co.; J .s. Pinkussohn Cigar Co. . 

I 
ti & Pool Roan 
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1928 

1938-1968 
1978 
1987 

1890 
1898-1918 
1928 
1938-1948 
1958-1978 
1987 

APPENDIX II 

Charleston Trunk Co. ; Hunley' s Pharmacy; J. S. Pinkussohn 
Cigar Co. & Pcx:>l Roan 

Welgreen Drug Store 
Shahid's Furniture 
vacant 

Hirsch, Israel, & Co., Clothiers 
J.L. David & Co., clothing 
vacant 
Rhealee Hat Shop 
Mary Jane Shoes 
Evergreen Imµ:>rts of Charleston 

* * * 




